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Cantonment Towson, the original post, was never anything wore than
a teuporary installation, a collection of wooden huts and tents that
served the five years thne first site on the Red River was in use. In
November 1830, aowever, when the gzovernument ordered establishment of a
permenent fort, a new and improved location was decided upon -- an
stretch of prairie above Gates Creeix about a mile nortqeast ofz
present town of
erected.

All the work done in counection wita the erectlon\hf/\_
this post was thorough and substantial. There is abundande’
of fine limestone most suitable for building purposes in theé
cliffs near by. Three buildings, comprising the officers!
quarters, extended along the edge of the hill on the north
side of the rectangle., These each had three foot stone
foundations, and were built of logs -- a story and a half
in height, with openings and covered porches facing south.
Four other buildings were erccted along eacih wing on the
east and west respectively. As the ground slopes towards +tne
south, the foundations of the last of these bu1ld1ngs was
about nine feet high, affording an ample basement, though all
of the eight buildings were theoretically of one story. The
first two buildings on each wing, nearest to the officers!’
quarters, were used for sub-officers' barracks, quartermaster's

office, amusement parlor, and scaool room. The last two buildings
were used as barracis for the common soldiers —— three tiers of
bunks along each wall, and racks for their suns -- while the
kitchuen and dining rooms were located in the basements. One
striking feature of these buildings was the great stone chimney,
with fireplace nine feet wide and four feet deep, and six feet
from tine stone floor to the arch. It is said that a whole

steer could be roasted in one of these firevlaces and still

leeve room for tne baking and the b0111ng.

All of tne buildings were vainted white. Gravel walks,
lined with rows of snasde trees, extended in front of the
buildings around the hollow square, which lotter space wes
keot open for the parade ground. Two hundred and fifiy
feet farther south from the last barraciz building on the

ast tier was the Qnospital. Outside of the rectangle to

the east, the stableo, stiops and gardens were situated,
wille on the west side were the suttler's building, the dainy
and poultry yerds. About three hundred yards still fertaer
west was the cemetery, always an importent but melancholy
feature of every uilitery post. The soldiers buried here
were removed to the ceuetery at Fort Gibson after 1954.
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Fort Towson, near the Red River in southeasternfdﬁla&ema,
deserves National Register status for several valid -- not to
gay varied —-— reasons. Established by lajor-Alexander QUmuings .
in ley. 1824,-enly a few uonths after Fort Gibson, it is Oklahoma's
second oldest military post. (The original installation, a temporary
affeir of wooden shacks and teunts on the Red near the mouth of the
Kismichi River some six miles to the south, was abandoned in 1829.
Wnen re-activeted The Tollowing year, "Cantonument Towson" was moved
to this site on Gates Creek just northeast of the present town of

Fort Towson. )

Fort Towson, nowever, saw little actual militery activity.
It was establisned as something of a gymbol of authority for
both raiding Plains Indian tribes to the north and west and white
marauders meking their headguarters along the Red River. Its purpose
wes bhus largely defensive, its soldiers occupied mainly in building
roads. Even after re-location and re-activation =~ with the forced
reuoval of the Choctaws to this area —- the fort was not particularly
"militarye." And this points up the unmusual fect — especially
unusual in the case of a frontier outpost ——= that Towson's one
disgtinguishing trait was its moral atmosphere. Consider this
observation by the Presbyterian missionary Cyrus Xingsbury in 1837:

I have never seen a plece where there was & more
decided religious influence. Those who have never
witnessed the dissipation and almost total disregard
of morality and religion among soldiers at our frontier
posts can have but a faint conception of the naoppy
change that has been mede here,

Lior was the Rev. Mr. Kingsbury alone in his high regerd for the
poste General Henry H. Leaveuwortn spoke sgpecifically in 1834 of the
"highly moral condition of the troops." And Methodist missionary
William . Goode was similerly flettering in his comuents ten vears
later., "The establishment,” he noted, " is altogether suverior to
eny otner I have visited on this frontier in point of neatness and
permanence of improvements, comfort and good order, and especially
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7. Description - 2

Only a few broken sections of those massive masonry walls,
together with parts of foundations and scattered, isolated stones
remain on +he site +o mark what was once an ex+ens:Lve military
installation. The beauty of t+he site remains, however - the grassy
prairie, nearby woods, and flowing stream +hat influenced its
Selection nearly a century and a half ago. As for Doaksville, the
"gservice town" that lived and died with the fort, its memories are
kept alive in +he "(ld Doaksville Cemetery" which is the present Fort
Towson Cemetery. In it are the graves of Colonel David Folsom, first
electad chief (under the 1826 constitution of +he Choctaw Nation) and
a leader of the tribe during its removal from Mississippi to Indian
Territory under terms of the Treaty of Dancing Rabbit Creek, and of
Colonel J. H. Nail, another Choctaw leader who died in 1846. Both
graves are marked by impressive marble slabs brought up +he
Mississippi and Red Rivers by steamboat. Not far from *hese graves
is one marked simply "Tryphena's Grave." Though an aura of mystery
and romance surrounds her, Tryphena is believed to be a high-born
Choctaw "princess" who died tragically in a canoe accident while
still in her +wenties,
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tae wmorsl and religious influences auong the soldiers." Large numbers

of the "pious" soldiers attended Sunday services, and the two weekly
orayer meetings. ie also noted witn satisfaction the flourishing of a
temnperance society. This admittedly nigh woral tone 1s umusual because
it was apparently wmaintained in a uot entirely favorable physical setting.
At leest an official report in 1844 celled sttention to one disturbing
development at the post. "The men," it noted, "to avoid the bed bugs,
wiich are in countless nuumbers, sleep either uvpon the galleries or tne
floor of their quarters.”

Taough unpalisaded, Fort Towson was substantially constructed and was
long considered one of tae best-built and best-keot posts in the West. In
1849, while Captain Rendolph B. lMarcy was coumandant, nis wife lMary con-
sidered it "beautiful," noting that there were "wreat walks running in
every direction" and "many trees." The post was a busy one during tne
dexicen Vare. Bubt after taat, wita the frontier moviﬁ?“westvard ra01dly,
ite importance as a military base also declined rapidly. Abandonment
caie on June=&y-1854, and the post was used ss a Choctaw Indian ‘
until the outbreakx of the Civil War, T

Tae Civil War brought Towson back to life « « . and geve it yet
another gohewnat unusual distinction. Confederate troops used tae fort
througnout the war (Federal troops withdrew from southern Oklahome wien

the war began) and General S. B. Maxey made it his headquarters in 1863.
And the following year = on June 3, 1865 =— Fort Towson earned its
footnote status in Americen history. iere, two uontns after Appomatbox,
General Stand Watie, tnc valliant Cnerokee warrior, surrendered his
Indisn troops. It is believed to have been the last organized Confederate
force to do so. (The incident was colorful and exciting enough to rate a
spirited re-—enactuent 100 years later as one of the last celebrations of
the Civil Wer Centennial.) After this surrender, abandonment was couplete
and Port Towson quickly fell into ruins.

Wo history of Fort Towson would be complete without ot least souwe
considerstion of LCoaksville, Established in 1821 by tne Dosks brothers,
wio were fur traders, the settlement sprang to life in 18351 when Fort
Towson wos re-activated across Gates Creek to tne east., For wany years it
wag an important center for a large area, Shallow=draft Red River steam-
boats and overlend freight wagons scrved the settlement. In 185% seventeen
boats discharged cargoes for Loaksville — such varied items as powder and
shot, churns, and cloth. Murs and cotton were lozded for the return irips.

At Doaizsville in 1837 the Choctaw Nation egreed to grant equal rigats
in their country to the Chiclzasaws and the boundaries of the Chickasaw
District were defined by treaty. In 1855 the tribes agreed to formal
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8s Historical Significance - 3

gseparation and the Chickasaw District became the Chickasaw Netion.
From 1850 to 1863 Doaksville was the Choctaw capital. Here in 1860
the Choctew Convention drafted the Doaksville Constitution under
which the Nation operated until 1907, The first Masonic Lodge in
waat is now Oklahoma was formed at Doaksville. The town's decline and
eventual disappearance were due to the Civil War, discontimuance of
river traffic, and finally the removal of the capital itself. But
for a quarter of a century it was one of the principal trade centers
of all Indian Territory. In 1842 Choctaw Indian agent William
Arustrong described the settlement in an official report as follows:

Doaksville is one of the wost orderly and quiet towns
that you will find in the West. There is a resident physician,
a good tavern, blacksmith shop, wagonueker and wheelwright. A
caurch has been erected. A bemperance society is organized
waich mumbers a large portion of the uost respectable Choctaws
and Chickasaws as well &s our own population. I have been in
this village a week at a time without seeing anytaing like
ardent spirits or a drunken Indian.

Fort Towson and Doaksville alike, it seems, were a bit on the unusual
side for the raw western frontier.
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